
Notes of meeting held 22 February 2023

Present:   Cllr Hugh King, Mayor, Dereham Town Council; Cllr Phillip Duigan; Cllr Philip Morton;  
Cllr Stuart Green; Peter Wade-Martins, Dereham Heritage Trust; :Carolyn Coleman, 
aboutDereham; Helen Evans, aboutDereham, Mike Webb, Chairman of aboutDereham.

1 Apologies / absence

None. Mike started the meeting at 7.30pm.

2 Minutes of meeting held 22 February

The minutes of the February 22 meeting were agreed. 

Matters Arising: 

At the last meeting it had been said that a traffic study is an important priority for
Dereham, as it is the key to making changes to the Market Place. Cllr Morton 
reported that this had not been picked up with Dereham Town Council in the 
intervening period. The town council is currently focused on producing a walking
and cycling strategy. No-one knows if the newspaper reports of £350k received 
by Breckland Council (BDC) are correct or what Breckland plans to do with such
funds if they exist. Mike has asked for an update from BDC officers.

Hugh told us that Dereham Town Council (DTC) has asked repeatedly for 
updates regarding the Dereham Town Delivery Plan (DTDP) but has not 
received any information.

The meeting agreed that it will be helpful to ask a DTC Councillor who is also a 
BDC Councillor to join the group. The Mayor was asked to sound out the 4 
Councillors who sit on both councils.

Mike was asked to write to BDC to ask about the £350k and if it can be used 
toward a traffic study in Dereham, and to ask for an update re the Street Art 
project, This was agreed.

Hugh

Mike

7 Council Newsletter (item brought forward)

Mike had circulated a copy of the newsletter produced, we think monthly, by 
Cirencester Town Council. (See example here)

Comments included that it was a very good example of community 
engagement, although one person thought the content was a bit thin. Certainly 
times have changed since the days when the EDP reporter would attend 
council meetings and routinely report on what the council is doing. 

The group agreed that a newsletter is a good idea for putting out good news 
stories and updates about the many projects the council deals with. 

One person suggested creating a database of subscribers, but others said that 
people would subscribe from links on the website, press stories and Facebook.

Carolyn reported that it can be produced using Mailchimp and there is no fee for
up to 1,000 subscribers.

It was asked if this can be put on a council agenda for discussion. It was also 
observed that producing a newsletter, even if free to use, would require staff 
time. It is possible it may not have a high ranking on the council's priority list.

Hugh

https://mailchi.mp/96afb8bb3f83/latest-news-from-cirencester-town-council?e=64540438d7


3 Dereham Town Delivery Plan - update

No update has been received.

4 Role of group

There was a lengthy discussion about this item. The proposition was that the 
group should continue in order to keep an eye on the progress of the DTPDP. 
Some people thought it is necessary to get an update from BDC on any 
progress regarding town delivery plans before settling the role of the group.

It was also observed that the existence of the town delivery plans can impede 
progress elsewhere, eg NCC will not invest (in some cases) until they know 
what is happening with town delivery plans. There is a new leader and cabinet 
at NCC, and Phillip D said the Economic Lead may be willing to meet with us.

Carolyn said she thinks the group is worth continuing whether or not we get a 
progress report from BDC. Mike also pointed out that there are some projects 
already under way, eg brown signs, new seating in town centres etc

Paul suggested a social event and this was agreed. Paul will draft an invitation 
to a soirée at the church - with no agenda, no papers, no displays, just purely 
nibbles and chat - and circulate this together with a proposed invite list, ideally 
before our next meeting.

Paul

5 Brown signs on A47

Mike reported that he will attend DTC Heritage & Open Spaces committee on 
27 June to ask for support in principle for brown signs on the A47. He hopes the
council will also agree the draft proposed content for such signs before going 
back to National Highways for costings.

Mike

6 Community Toilet scheme

This item is on the Council's priority list and a budget set aside for 
implementation, but it appears to be always superceded by higher priorities.

As Mayor, Hugh has walked round the town several times and has not been 
approached by residents demanding toilets. Other councillors say they have 
been asked by residents if the town council can do something to provide more 
toilets in the town centre. Phillip D stated it is more of an issue for people 
coming in to the town centre from the villages who cannot pop home and are 
more dependent on public facilities. He said it is an economic issue.

The group was reminded of the overwhelming demand expressed on Facebook
by residents saying that additional toilets in town are a higher priority than street
art. This was also raised at the recent aboutDereham AGM.

It was asked if the group can see the list of priorities. It was thought these are in
the public domain.  As the list is reviewed quarterly by the Finance & 
Governance committee, of which Stuart is the Chair, he agreed to ask for the 
list and circulate it to the group with suitable redaction of any sensitive (eg 
personnel) issues.

Stuart

8 AOB

Hugh asked the group to understand if he is unable to attend every session due
to pressure of his other commitments.

Next meeting 

28 June 2023 (4th Weds). Apologies in advance from Philip M and Paul C. 
(Paul will aim to circulate his draft letter and invite list before)

Paul
All


